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          1  COMMITTEE ON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

          2                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: Good afternoon,

          3  and welcome to the Committee on Economic

          4  Development. Today we will hear testimony concerning

          5  resolution 311. Almost like 911, but 311, calling on

          6  the United States Treasury Department to return the

          7  U.S. Customs Service and its 750 employees to Lower

          8  Manhattan.

          9                 The Customs Service opened its first

         10  office on White Hall Street in Lower Manhattan in

         11  1789. Over the past two centuries, a vast network of

         12  import/export related small businesses have

         13  established themselves in Lower Manhattan attracted

         14  to the Customs Service. Hundreds of these offices

         15  employing thousands of people were established in

         16  the area of the World Trade Center by the Year 2001.

         17  The Customs Service alone employed 750 people at 6

         18  World Trade Center. The Customs Office was destroyed

         19  during the September 11th attack, their operations

         20  were dispersed to several locations with almost half

         21  of the jobs going to Newark New Jersey. About 200

         22  went to 110 Plaza in Midtown and just 80 jobs were

         23  sent to JFK Airport. These location decisions are

         24  problematic for several reasons:  They have meant

         25  lengthy commutes for employees, some of whom now
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          2  have to spend as much as five hours getting to and

          3  from work. Trade is a multi-billion business in the

          4  City, for our economy these relocations have been

          5  especially troublesome because they pose a great

          6  inconvenience for the many trade-related firms that

          7  have made Lower Manhattan their home.

          8                 With the Customs Service no longer

          9  serving as an anchor for this sector of the economy,

         10  we risk losing hundreds of jobs, hundreds of firms,

         11  importers, exporters, trade lawyers, freight

         12  forwarders, custom brokers and others. We risk

         13  losing these firms that may no longer find an

         14  advantage to being in Lower Manhattan.

         15                 We need the federal government to set

         16  an example for the private sector companies and

         17  recognize the importance of the customs service to

         18  Lower Manhattan.

         19                 But to this day, the Customs Service

         20  has given no indication that it will return to Lower

         21  Manhattan.

         22                 I want to acknowledge the good work

         23  of our State Senator Charles Schumer, who has been

         24  working extensively to see what can be done to get

         25  the Customs Service to return to Lower Manhattan.
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          2                 We are very pleased that this is able

          3  -- that he is able, or will be able to join us here

          4  today and tell us about his efforts to win and

          5  persuade the Customs Service to return to its

          6  historic home.

          7                 Let me pause for a moment and

          8  identify the good Council people who have joined me

          9  here today.

         10                 To my left, of course, is Council

         11  Member Yvette Clarke from Brooklyn. Our staff

         12  attorney, Beverly Reid is to my immediate right, and

         13  of course Lower Manhattan's finest is here, our

         14  Council Member who really has been one of the

         15  leading forces in moving this resolution forward.

         16                 Without  further ado, let me

         17  introduce our first witness.

         18                 Would you be kind enough Ms. Reid.

         19                 MS. REID: Susan Mitchell of the

         20  United States Customs Service.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: If you pull that

         22  mic to you, it's actually on when the mic is off.

         23                 MS. MITCHELL: Thank you. I was just

         24  waiting for him to hand out copies of the testimony.

         25                 What's being handed out is copies of
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          2  the testimony, as well as a copy of a letter to Mr.

          3  Louis Tomson, President of Lower Manhattan

          4  Development Corporation from Commissioner Bonner.

          5                 Good afternoon. I have been asked

          6  before you to discuss a resolution calling upon the

          7  United States Treasury Department to return the

          8  United States Customs Service and its 750 employees

          9  back to its historic home in Lower Manhattan.

         10                 First, let me make it absolutely

         11  clear, that it is the desire of the United States

         12  Customs Service to see a newly built Customs House

         13  in New York and that it be located in Lower

         14  Manhattan.

         15                 I would like to share with you a

         16  direct quote from the letter that was just handed

         17  out from Commissioner Bonner.

         18                 This letter was delivered today from

         19  Mr. Tomson from the Lower Manhattan Development

         20  Corporation, and he says, I quote: "I would like to

         21  see that the U.S. Customhouse that was destroyed on

         22  September 11th, 2001, be rebuilt in Lower Manhattan,

         23  ideally in the same location in which it once

         24  stood."

         25                 The Commissioner has had numerous
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          2  conversations with Senator Schumer on this issue,

          3  and his response has been consistent: U.S. Customs

          4  belongs in Lower Manhattan, U.S. Customs wants to be

          5  in Lower Manhattan, ideally, and a stand-alone

          6  custom house.

          7                 The letter for Mr. Tomson, however,

          8  has been our first opportunity to engage with an

          9  entity that can make that happen.

         10                 As the Commissioner states in his

         11  letter, and I quote again, "I would like to discuss

         12  further with you the possible role that Customs may

         13  play, in the long-term revitalization of Lower

         14  Manhattan. Clearly, we would like to be engaged in

         15  this long-term process.

         16                 Secondly, let me make it just as

         17  clear that we are not opening a new Customhouse in

         18  New Jersey. The internal memo that so many articles

         19  have referenced discusses moves for the existing

         20  area port offices in New Jersey to a larger facility

         21  in downtown Newark.

         22                 The use of the word "Customhouse" was

         23  inappropriate and has given the misconception that

         24  we are not committed to reopening the New York

         25  Customhouse.
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          2                 The current conditions in the

          3  existing area port offices necessitates a move and

          4  the intent of the internal document was to notify

          5  the employees of the changes that area management

          6  and the NETU had agreed upon concerning the move to

          7  the new port office.

          8                 It is my hope that this hearing will

          9  assist in setting the record straight.

         10                 As everyone in this room is all too

         11  painfully aware, the horrific events of September

         12  11th, 2001 changed the world. The huge loss of life,

         13  men and women killed just because they were doing

         14  their jobs, will scar our hearts and minds forever.

         15                 Each of us knows people, not just by

         16  occupation but by name, by face, and by personal

         17  contact loss that day.

         18                 The United States Customs Service

         19  changed that day as well. We are fortunate to be

         20  able to say we did not lose any of our employees.

         21  But we did suffer a great loss, that of our

         22  Customhouse located at 6 World Trade Center.

         23                 Our historic Customhouse still stands

         24  guard at the Battery, where it once overlooked the

         25  bustling New York harbor. When it became apparent
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          2  that requisite renovations needed to modernize that

          3  building to adjust to the demands of what had become

          4  the functions of the Customs Service would be

          5  overwhelming, the decision was made to move to the

          6  newly developing World Trade Center site.

          7                 Building 6 was constructed in line

          8  with the needs of the trade community we served and

          9  with the best interest of the government in mind.

         10                 In 1972, the Customs Service proudly

         11  hoisted its flag at 6 World Trade Center, where it

         12  flew until terrorist destroyed that site.

         13                 Within two hours of the attack the

         14  Customs Management Center, headed by my predecessor,

         15  had reestablished itself in the Area Port office of

         16  JFK Airport. Immediate tasks at hand included a

         17  complete and accurate accounting of all employees;

         18  initiation of a continuation of operations plan;

         19  establishment of communications between Customs

         20  Headquarters  and the field office; contracting for

         21  Employee Assistance and Counseling; initiation of

         22  appropriate action in both Are Ports of JFK Airport

         23  and the New York/Newark area, as we instituted what

         24  was then called Alert Level One; and an assessment

         25  of the damage done to our facility.
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          2                 After the tours fell and in the cold

          3  light of the following days, it was apparent that 6

          4  World Trade would be to be taken down as well.

          5                 Housed in the Customhouse at 6 World

          6  Trade Center were employees of various offices

          7  within the organizational structure of the United

          8  States Customs Service, which ran the gamut from

          9  special agents to lab technicians, import

         10  specialists to international trade managers, entry

         11  specialists to attorneys. Each profession having

         12  unique workload demands, as well as unique space

         13  needs specific to our law enforcement mission.

         14                 The United States Customs Service

         15  Office of Logistics contacted the General Services

         16  Administration, as is required, to ascertain what

         17  space is available for relocation purposes.

         18                 As you all probably were aware, the

         19  General Services Administration, GSA, is the

         20  landlord of record for all federal government space,

         21  and we as an agency must contract for space through

         22  them.

         23                 A list of properties was provided by

         24  the GSA to local management, who did site surveys on

         25  each listing.
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          2                 While the list was not lengthy to

          3  start, properties were being taken off the market

          4  quickly, as many entities were looking for

          5  relocation space. If it came clear that sufficient

          6  space, meeting all the varied law enforcement needs,

          7  such as adequate parking with easy access to major

          8  highways for the special agents, access to public

          9  transportation for the majority of the employees,

         10  avoiding high-rise office space, specialized lab

         11  equipment and space, was not going to be found in

         12  the short-term, especially in Lower Manhattan.

         13                 We were going to need to separate

         14  functions out.

         15                 We were now faced with recreating the

         16  port configuration and we took into consideration

         17  the business reality of 2001. We did not do this in

         18  a vacuum as some have suggested. This was done in

         19  concert with representatives of the trade community,

         20  brokers associations, trade associations and Customs

         21  Service Headquarters.

         22                 Did we contact every entity in the

         23  trade community? Of course not. The time simply did

         24  not allow for our usual broad-based community input.

         25  Frankly, we needed to get back into the business of
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          2  processing the billions of dollars of imported

          3  merchandise that enters the commerce of the United

          4  States through JFK Airport and the airports and

          5  seaports of New York.

          6                 We needed to get our employees back

          7  to work. We needed to be able to respond to our

          8  changing priorities, including anti-terrorism.

          9                 We needed to reassert our mission

         10  statement, to be the guardians of our nation's

         11  border and America's front line.

         12                 The Customs Service did not decide to

         13  abandon New York City or close its doors to the

         14  trade community. The Office of Investigations, with

         15  the Special Agents, relocated 175 employees to a

         16  location in Midtown Manhattan.

         17                 In concert with our growing

         18  anti-terrorism responsibilities, this office has

         19  actually grown due to various task forces that have

         20  been formed in which the United States Customs

         21  Service has the lead role.

         22                 The Office of Laboratory Sciences was

         23  able to find specialized temporary lab space with

         24  the Food and Drug Administration on the campus of

         25  York College in Queens, New York.
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          2                 GSA has leased substantial space for

          3  Customs at One Penn Plaza, where approximately 300

          4  former World Trade Center employees are based.

          5                 These employees are easily accessible

          6  to the importing community and are readily available

          7  to assist them in conducting their international

          8  trade business.

          9                 Over 70 employees were relocated to

         10  the Port Offices located at JFK Airport in Queens

         11  New York. All this begs the question how many people

         12  have actually left New York City.

         13                 Approximately 172 employees, who are

         14  predominantly engaged in Port activities have been

         15  relocated to the port offices in New Jersey.

         16                 They joined approximately 350 of

         17  their fellow port employees in the port offices at

         18  1210 Corbin Street in Elizabeth New Jersey.

         19                 This office is the equivalent of the

         20  JFK Airport offices located at Building 77 in JFK

         21  Airport. Unfortunately, the space Customs has in

         22  that location is inadequate to provide safe,

         23  reasonable work accommodations for this expanded

         24  workforce and is not accessible to public

         25  transportation.
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          2                 This has indeed resulted in many

          3  former employees of the World Trade Center site,

          4  having commutes in excess of two hours each way.

          5                 Some of that transportation is

          6  provided by Customs via a shuttle bus to and from

          7  Newark Penn Station to the Corbin Street facility.

          8                 Transit subsidies have been increased

          9  to $100 per month. Management has been flexible on

         10  report time, yet this continues to be an intolerable

         11  situation.

         12                 The Office of Logistics, again, in

         13  concert with GSA, has leased space at 111 Raymond

         14  Boulevard, Newark, New Jersey, to relocate all

         15  commercial processing from the Corbin Street

         16  location.

         17                 The site will be the new port office,

         18  not a new customhouse.

         19                 This includes all of the port offices

         20  that were always in New Jersey, as well as some

         21  other displaced employees from the World Trade

         22  Center site. Only the uniformed and special

         23  personnel will remain at the Corbin Street location.

         24  All others will move into the new port offices on

         25  Raymond Boulevard. This facility is one block away

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            15

          1  COMMITTEE ON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

          2  from Newark Penn Station, accessible by New Jersey

          3  Transit as well as the path trains.

          4                 This facility is large enough to

          5  relocate the lab space that was lost in the World

          6  Trade Center.

          7                 The Office of Laboratory Science and

          8  Services will relocate to this facility when their

          9  new state-of-the-art lab is built.

         10                 Let me reiterate, this facility is

         11  not designated as a customhouse, but rather as port

         12  offices for the Newark area.

         13                 That is a quick summation of where we

         14  are and how we got there. But this hearing is more

         15  about where we would like to be.

         16                 May I end with reiterating that the

         17  United States Customs Commissioner Robert Bonner has

         18  stated on numerous occasions that he would like to

         19  see Customs in New York return to a stand-alone

         20  customhouse and that it be in Lower Manhattan, where

         21  we have historically been located.

         22                 We as an agency applaud any and all

         23  efforts to rejoin all of our scattered offices under

         24  one roof, which would certainly allow for more

         25  cohesive operations. It would be extremely
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          2  beneficial for me as the Director of Field

          3  Operations of both JFK Airport and the New York,

          4  Newark area, to be able to walk down the hall or

          5  down a flight of stairs to deal with my counterpart

          6  in the Office of Investigations, the Special Agent

          7  in charge.

          8                 Customs is committed to assessing the

          9  needs of the trade community, aligning our resources

         10  in light of changing demands under the auspices of

         11  homeland security, and anti-terrorism and returning

         12  to Lower Manhattan.

         13                 We, in concert with GSA approval and

         14  the steadfast support from our Appropriators, will

         15  work with any agency, committee or council to make a

         16  Lower Manhattan Customhouse a reality.

         17                 Until that time, we will ensure a

         18  safe, reasonable work environment for our employees.

         19                 I thank you for the opportunity to

         20  address these concerns, and I look forward to

         21  working with you in the future.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: Thank you. If

         23  you will be kind enough to state your title. Your

         24  name and your title again for the record.

         25                 MS. MITCHELL: My name is Susan
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          2  Mitchell, and I am the Director of Field Operations

          3  for the United States Customs Service in New York.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: A pleasure, Ms.

          5  Mitchell. If you can stay for a moment, there may be

          6  a question or two.

          7                 Let me do some housework first.

          8                 We have been rejoined by Council

          9  Member Eric Gioia from Queens, and of course we've

         10  had the able assistance of our Legislative Analyst

         11  Frank Neely on this issue.

         12                 By custom -- custom -- I am supposed

         13  to raise the first question, but I'm going to yield

         14  that first question to one of the people who did a

         15  great deal to make this hearing possible, Council

         16  Member Gerson.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Thank you very

         18  much, Mr. Chair. And thank you for your support and

         19  your leadership on this very important issue to

         20  Lower Manhattan, but indeed to all of the City of

         21  New York. Thank you, Ms. Mitchell.

         22                 A good part of your testimony is

         23  indeed welcome news, and I appreciate the statements

         24  you made and the statements on the part of the

         25  Commissioner expressing your intent and desire to
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          2  relocate a unified operation within Lower Manhattan,

          3  and let me start with the good news; do you know

          4  where we stand in that process? I see there is a

          5  letter to Lou Tomson, has there been any follow-up?

          6  Are there any folks working with LMDC, the Lower

          7  Manhattan Development Corporation, to identify

          8  appropriate locations? Where do we stand with this

          9  process of relocating as soon as possible back into

         10  Lower Manhattan?

         11                 MS. MITCHELL: Well, frankly, the

         12  letter that the Commissioner responded to, the one

         13  from Mr. Tomson in the Lower Manhattan Development

         14  Corporation, was actually our first almost

         15  invitation to the table so-to-speak, in that we

         16  cannot as an agency walk up to the developer and say

         17  build us a building. We would love to be able to do

         18  that, but as an agency we are precluded from doing

         19  that, we must deal through GSA, the General Services

         20  Administration.

         21                 That is the overall landlord for the

         22  entire federal government.

         23                 We have pledged to give numbers,

         24  specs, needs, whatever we can, to advance that

         25  process along, and at the end of the letter to Mr.
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          2  Tomson, the Commissioner has designated his Chief of

          3  Staff as a point of contact for Mr. Tomson to get

          4  back to him.

          5                 We're more than willing to be engaged

          6  in the process.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: And who is

          8  that, the name of the Chief of Staff who is

          9  appointed --

         10                 MS. MITCHELL: Andy Maner, M-a-n-e-r.

         11  It's at the end of the letter.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: So, I take it

         13  you and the service agrees that putting all other

         14  needs and issues aside it's in the best interest of

         15  the service to have a unified operation return to

         16  the historic home amidst the trade community in

         17  Lower Manhattan; is that pretty much the sum and

         18  substance?

         19                 MS. MITCHELL: Absolutely. I

         20  personally would love to be in the historic

         21  Customhouse, but the Commissioner has said he would

         22  like to see it at the site of the former site at the

         23  World Trade Center, and we don't know where that is.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Well, again,

         25  that is welcomed news. Let me just then follow-up,

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            20

          1  COMMITTEE ON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

          2  and as you accurately pointed, we need more to look

          3  ahead than to look back, and I will look forward to

          4  working with you and the service to make sure that

          5  you are at the table and that this, in fact, does

          6  take place and this testimony will be very helpful

          7  in assuring that.

          8                 Just on some specifics and then I'll

          9  yield. The Office of Laboratory Science and Services

         10  which you state will relocate to the new facility in

         11  New Jersey once the lab is complete, that's the

         12  facility which is now temporarily located in York

         13  College in Queens?

         14                 MS. MITCHELL: Correct.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Okay, so that

         16  will be a few more folks moving out of the City of

         17  New York into --

         18                 MS. MITCHELL: There are 32 people

         19  employed in that office.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Okay, 32

         21  people doing some pretty significant work.

         22                 Let me make it clear, none of this

         23  is, certainly on the part of Lower Manhattan, in the

         24  district I represent, I'm sure I speak for the

         25  Council, we don't have any hostility towards New
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          2  Jersey, but we're looking very positively just on

          3  the history and the historic home of Lower

          4  Manhattan, and this is not a question of

          5  anti-Jersey, or anti, I mean this is pro Lower

          6  Manhattan and pro trade community, and I believe the

          7  best interests of our nation through the best

          8  interests of the Customs Service, which you have

          9  identified.

         10                 MS. MITCHELL: I agree. One thing on

         11  the lab, and it's something that we will consider

         12  when we come to the table, is if that is the type of

         13  facility that we really want in Lower Manhattan, and

         14  did we want that kind of equipment and those kinds

         15  of chemicals and that type of a set-up. I mean, when

         16  I talk about lab, I actually mean a laboratory.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Oh, I'm sure

         18  of that.

         19                 MS. MITCHELL: So, certainly we want

         20  to be back in Lower Manhattan, and we will certainly

         21  look to see what is the best mix of personnel to be

         22  there.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: And my last

         24  point, I'm just a little concerned, not only for the

         25  purposes for the process which the Customs Service
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          2  went through, but also for civil and to other folks,

          3  I'm a little concerned with your express rationale

          4  for why it was so urgent to leave Lower Manhattan

          5  and so quickly even temporarily.

          6                 You talked about, you said it's for

          7  specific reasons - parking. I mean, are you aware

          8  that there is a facility on Howard and Lafayette

          9  Street that is an exclusive federal parking facility

         10  with parking space set aside specifically and

         11  exclusively for various and for employees of

         12  different agencies of the federal government? And

         13  I'm wondering, before you jump to the need to have

         14  more parking elsewhere, did you all investigate the

         15  availability of that location, or any other location

         16  for that matter in Lower Manhattan?

         17                 MS. MITCHELL: I personally was not

         18  involved in the search process. I've taken this

         19  position over two months ago. However --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:

         21  Congratulations.

         22                 MS. MITCHELL: Thanks, I think.

         23                 The parking that we're talking about

         24  is really for the Special Agents, and that is about,

         25  there will be about 250 when they're fully staffed
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          2  up. I'm not sure if the parking you're talking about

          3  will suffice, but from your lips to God's ears it

          4  will work out, and we'll certainly look into when we

          5  come back in Lower Manhattan if that facility is

          6  still available and if it meets the needs of the

          7  Special Agents.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: I mean, this

          9  facility is actually used by people in different law

         10  enforcement agencies, both federal and non-federal

         11  level, and I believe it's underutilized. And I know

         12  about this because the community is looking for more

         13  parking space, and we're launching a parking plan,

         14  we'll certainly take into account of your needs.

         15                 Access to public transportation,

         16  certainly now with the restoration of our subway

         17  service, we certainly have plenty of access to

         18  public transportation in Lower Manhattan, so I'm

         19  sure you wouldn't quibble with that. So, let me jump

         20  to the last point, avoiding high-rise office space.

         21  I'm not quite sure what the problem -- why did we

         22  rule out, you know, some of the thousands of square

         23  feet of available office space in Lower Manhattan as

         24  temporary headquarters? Is it that you don't want to

         25  be high, or there may be some lower floors that are
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          2  available? I guess my question is, what

          3  investigation, what have you done to see what, in

          4  fact, is available in Lower Manhattan for temporary

          5  space before you, you know, kind of jump to go

          6  elsewhere for temporary space?

          7                 MS. MITCHELL: At the time back in

          8  September of 2001, they did look at several

          9  properties in Lower Manhattan, and, frankly, I'm

         10  having a hard time getting employees to go to the 11

         11  floor.

         12                 Employees that were there at 6, who

         13  were also there in '93, evacuated safely both times,

         14  had a real hard time with going to higher floors.

         15  And in an effort to try to make sure that we have a

         16  workforce that will come to work, I already do have

         17  some people that are on Workmen's Compensation and

         18  have not returned to work since September 11th, we

         19  did not look at space much higher than the 11th

         20  floor.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: I will just

         22  conclude and say that I urge you to reconsider that,

         23  and there is probably is significant space available

         24  on 11 stories or lower in Lower Manhattan, and

         25  certainly my office can help you identify that. And
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          2  beyond that, we've heard from many of your employees

          3  who have expressed a strong a strong desire to

          4  remain in Lower Manhattan, irrespective of the floor

          5  and there are countless examples from American

          6  Express to other major corporations of folks who

          7  were directly affected and who remained or returned,

          8  and I would, you know, hope that our federal

          9  government would set the best example and not, in

         10  terms of, you know, it's a commitment to downtown.

         11                 And I'll conclude where I started,

         12  I'm heartened to hear of your commitment to the

         13  future and let's just try and accelerate it, let's

         14  try and stop anymore temporary loss, and let's

         15  temporarily bring as many folks back as we can in

         16  the nearest future.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: Thank you,

         18  Council member.

         19                 MR. MITCHELL: We will commit to work

         20  with GSA to do that, and as far as American Express,

         21  they were fortunate to have a building to go back

         22  to, which we did not.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: Thank you,

         24  Council Member.

         25                 Council Member Recchia.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: Yes, good

          3  afternoon.

          4                 I just have a few questions, is the

          5  office the location at the midtown office, is that

          6  different than the Penn Plaza office?

          7                 MS. MITCHELL: Yes, it is, and due to

          8  the nature of their work, they would ask that I not

          9  publicize that address.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: Okay.

         11                 MS. MITCHELL: I do believe, however,

         12  that if you look at the letter, the Commissioner put

         13  the exact address in there.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: I got that in

         15  there, okay.

         16                 I just wanted to make sure there was

         17  two different offices.

         18                 MS. MITCHELL: That is a different

         19  office. That has right now, it started out with 175

         20  employees, and that it's up to about 225 at this

         21  point.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: Okay.

         23                 MS. MITCHELL: Some of those are

         24  additional staff due to task force participation.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: Okay. As you
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          2  know, there have been hearings, community meetings,

          3  Town Hall meetings about what should be built at the

          4  World Trade Center site; are you familiar with that?

          5                 MS. MITCHELL: Yes, I live in New

          6  York.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: Okay. So,

          8  you're familiar with that.

          9                 How many times did the Customs, U.S.

         10  Customs go and testify that they would like to

         11  remain there and that they should get their offices

         12  back in the site of the World Trade Center?

         13                 MS. MITCHELL: To my knowledge we have

         14  yet to be invited to any of those. This was our

         15  first invitation and we took you up on it.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: Okay.

         17                 So, just let me understand, because

         18  nobody invited you, nobody was going to come? All

         19  right, then if that's what you're saying, then why

         20  did this letter, why did Robert C. Bonner write this

         21  letter?

         22                 MS. MITCHELL: Commissioner Bonner --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: He wrote it

         24  today, the day of this hearing.

         25                 MS. MITCHELL: Commissioner Bonner
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          2  wrote that letter in response to a letter from Mr.

          3  Tomson that he received yesterday.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: Oh, he

          5  received a letter inviting him to come talk about

          6  relocating?

          7                 MS. MITCHELL: I don't have a copy of

          8  the letter to Mr. Bonner. I only have a copy of his

          9  response.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: It's very

         11  peculiar to me that this letter is written today,

         12  the date of the hearing, and that nobody from the

         13  Customs made it clear that they want to go back to

         14  Lower Manhattan. I'm just saying I just find it very

         15  difficult to comprehend that, and I have to be

         16  honest with you, I think we're getting a lot of

         17  smoke and mirrors - we've got to put them here,

         18  we've got to put them there - but slowly but surely

         19  we're going to lose these people in Lower Manhattan,

         20  that's what we don't want to happen, because we need

         21  everybody to come back.

         22                 If the United States government

         23  doesn't come back to Lower Manhattan, how could you

         24  expect private business to come back. And I just

         25  find it very difficult that this message has never

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            29

          1  COMMITTEE ON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

          2  come across.

          3                 So, is it your testimony, on behalf

          4  of your Commissioner that you wish to come back to

          5  the Lower Manhattan?

          6                 MS. MITCHELL: Absolutely.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: Council

          8  Member Clarke.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Good

         10  afternoon.

         11                 MS. MITCHELL: Good afternoon.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: I know that

         13  this is a complicated process because you're dealing

         14  with GSA, which is essentially the broker for

         15  Customhouse, but the agency and the entity itself

         16  has already made the determination that, you know,

         17  it's a New Yorker essentially, that it would love to

         18  come back to its historic origins in the City of New

         19  York.

         20                 I was just wondering whether because

         21  of the displacement you had to sign or GSA has on

         22  your behalf leasing agreements, and whether you

         23  negotiated leasing agreements which would enable you

         24  at the appropriate time to be able to move your

         25  facility back. So, have those leasing agreements
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          2  been made and are there any plans to sign any? And

          3  if a lease does exist, how long is it for?

          4                 MS. MITCHELL: To my knowledge, there

          5  has been a lease signed at One Penn Plaza that is a

          6  seven-year lease. However, with every GSA property,

          7  we do have a clause in there that with six months

          8  notification we can close down any lease.

          9                 My understanding is that the other

         10  Midtown location does not have a lease as of yet.

         11  They have condemned the facility but have not signed

         12  any lease with the landlord. Those are the two

         13  locations in Manhattan. The location at JFK Airport

         14  we've been in for many years, and the location on

         15  Raymond Boulevard, there has been a signed lease.

         16                 Irrespective of moving into Lower

         17  Manhattan, we will be in that facility. The area

         18  port offices are moving from Corbin Street to

         19  Raymond Boulevard, so that lease would stay.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Okay.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: Thank you, Madam

         22  Councilperson.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Thank you, Mr.

         24  Chair.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: On many a bumper
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          2  sticker there is a saying showing the American flag

          3  saying "These colors don't run." I'm very grateful

          4  and gratified to hear that the Customs Service

          5  believes in the same thing, because I'm sure this

          6  was never a thought that went through Customs, it

          7  would have been absolutely the wrong statement to

          8  make, and as a matter of fact if the federal

          9  government started pulling out of New York City,

         10  then why on this planet shouldn't any of the good

         11  citizens here pull out of New York City?

         12                 But if our government can show by its

         13  commitment that it will stay and in the midst of war

         14  perhaps stay in New York, there have been several

         15  wars that have been fought, and the Customs Service

         16  did not leave New York City.

         17                 So, I'm glad that this, and this war

         18  yet undeclared perhaps, Customs is going to do the

         19  right thing and see this thing through.

         20                 I just have one or two questions and

         21  then I will stop this. Approximately how many of the

         22  750 employees, I'll even allow percentage, are going

         23  to stay in New York City?

         24                 MS. MITCHELL: Right now 172 have gone

         25  to Port Newark, and five from the Office of Internal
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          2  Affairs have gone to Hoboken. Of the 750 that's how

          3  many have gone so far.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: And how many are

          5  returning? God willing we're going to build what we

          6  need to build in New York City, what is the

          7  commitment to return these good New Yorkers back

          8  home?

          9                 MS. MITCHELL: I would like to say

         10  that we will look at the needs -- we will deal with

         11  the trade community, we will see what the staffing

         12  needs are. I think there may be new needs, there may

         13  be some different bodies there necessarily. If OI,

         14  the Office of Investigations, can come with us, they

         15  have enhanced staffing, we will certainly be beyond

         16  the 750 that we started with, but it may be a

         17  different mix of people.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: Let me also

         19  question you about the lab, or encourage you about

         20  the lab.

         21                 Kennedy Airport, of course, may be a

         22  very worthy place, and if not Kennedy, there are

         23  many areas in New York City. We prefer it in

         24  Manhattan, but certainly I think that New York City

         25  may be big enough to accommodate a lab somewhere,
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          2  and if Kennedy is a good place, can I also, as the

          3  Council Member of that area, and as Chair of

          4  Economic Development for the City, we will move

          5  heaven and earth to do what we need to do about

          6  Kennedy, and that includes your needs, the Customs'

          7  needs with a location in Lower Manhattan.

          8                 We will move heaven and earth to do

          9  whatever we need to do. So, if we can be useful in

         10  conversations with GSA, or with Mr. Tomson, we stand

         11  very willing at a moment's notice to join in as a

         12  partner, as a worthy partner in doing what we need

         13  to do to bring all of these New Yorkers home, and to

         14  show that our enemies, whether domestic or foreign,

         15  that New York stands committed to the customs, will

         16  stand with New York City, and that this country will

         17  do whatever we need to do to ensure victory in this

         18  war.

         19                 So, I'd like to thank you for coming

         20  out here today, and I suspect that we'll have the

         21  pleasure of seeing you again at another moment.

         22                 MS. MITCHELL: Okay, thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: I trust it

         24  wasn't that painful.

         25                 MS. MITCHELL: No.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: If it's

          3  possible for you to stay to hear some of the

          4  additional testimony, that might be very helpful.

          5                 MS. MITCHELL: I would love to. Thank

          6  you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: If you can call

          8  our next witness.

          9                 MS. REID: We will now hear from

         10  Martin Brennan, Chief of Staff of Senator Schumer.

         11                 MR. BRENNAN: I am very happy and

         12  pleased to be here this afternoon. For the record,

         13  my name is Martin Brennan, the State Director for

         14  U.S. Senator Charles Schumer.

         15                 It's a pleasure to be here today to

         16  address this issue, and I wanted to express the

         17  sincere regrets from the Senator, who has had

         18  strongly desired to be here today to address the

         19  Committee directly on an issue that he cares very

         20  deeply about, but on an issue that also matters to

         21  the redevelopment of Lower Manhattan, the City, our

         22  State and our whole economy. He has been called into

         23  a conference committee regarding the terrorism

         24  insurance bill, and the importance of resolving that

         25  in a time sensitive manner, as we near the end of
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          2  this congressional session, took precedence today. I

          3  hope you won't be too upset at my presence versus

          4  the Senator's, but I think you'll be happy with some

          5  of the news that I have to report.

          6                 In the process of advocating for

          7  keeping the Customs House in Lower Manhattan in

          8  total, equal or beyond where it was on September

          9  11th, we have been dealing on a regular basis with a

         10  variety of the stakeholders involved, ranging with

         11  the treasury employees union, to the broker

         12  community, the shipping community, Council Member

         13  Gerson, Speaker Miller, Mr. Chair and other people

         14  that have been involved in this, as well as with GSA

         15  and, of course, with customs.

         16                 We appreciate the opportunity to

         17  testify today, and appreciate the opportunity to

         18  inform you of some of the updates regarding Senator

         19  Schumer's efforts to keep customs in Lower

         20  Manhattan.

         21                 We're hopeful that today's discussion

         22  will help break the logjam that has thus far kept

         23  the customer service for making a complete attempt

         24  to return the employees back to Lower Manhattan

         25  which is their rightful place since 1789 as a
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          2  linchpin of the economic engine in the community of

          3  all of New York.

          4                 Let me begin by saying that I have no

          5  doubt that customs and the procurement agency, the

          6  General Service Administration, has placed a

          7  difficult task in attempting to secure office space

          8  in the days and months immediately following the

          9  September 11th attacks.

         10                 The majority of Lower Manhattan was

         11  shut down and all of the companies and agencies who

         12  had been displaced were scrambling to reestablish

         13  themselves. Customs, which had 757 employees at 6

         14  World Trade Center were forced to scatter their

         15  employees to the sites that have been mentioned by

         16  the previous testifier.

         17                 Since then, Senator Schumer has

         18  aggressively and repetitively sought to return these

         19  employees to Lower Manhattan under one roof.

         20                 In the pursuit of that he has

         21  personally talked with and met with Commissioner

         22  Bonner at least four occasions, the staff in

         23  Washington, D.C. and New York has been in constant

         24  contact with both GSA and with Customs.

         25                 In fact, the Customs Commissioner had
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          2  assured Senator Schumer that the agency  would move

          3  back to Lower Manhattan, and Senator Schumer has

          4  offered his assistance in helping GSA and customs

          5  find the facilities that would meet their unique

          6  needs.

          7                 Customs has often cited security and

          8  space requirements as the primary obstacle in its

          9  return to Lower Manhattan, and Senator Schumer has

         10  reached out to leaders in the real estate market to

         11  seek their opinion and support and resources to

         12  locate the space that may meet the agency's

         13  expectations, and as I'm sure you're aware, Cushman

         14  and Wakefield have issued a report and named many

         15  available sites. We are confident that some of Lower

         16  Manhattan's vacant space or new space that can be

         17  constructed, would help the customs situation.

         18                 Yesterday evening Senator Schumer had

         19  a conversation with Commissioner Bonner, and

         20  following up that conversation I want to read to you

         21  the letter that has been sent from Commissioner

         22  Bonner to Senator Schumer. To highlight what we

         23  believe the commitments were made in this

         24  conversation and reiterated by the letter, we

         25  believe Commissioner Bonner has indicated that
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          2  Customs will in fact stay in New York, that they are

          3  not intending on relocating the Customhouse of New

          4  York to Newark.

          5                 Secondly, that as per our strong, you

          6  know, following our strong advocacy on the issue,

          7  that as a first step they have agreed to, with all

          8  due speed look into getting the ball rolling by

          9  bringing important specialists back to Lower

         10  Manhattan as the first step, an immediate first step

         11  that will begin to reestablish the customs presence

         12  in Lower Manhattan.

         13                 So, let me read to you the letter

         14  that Commissioner Bonner has sent in response to

         15  that conversation.

         16                 "Dear Senator Schumer:

         17                 As promised during our phone call

         18  yesterday afternoon, I am writing this letter to

         19  confirm my intentions regarding the relocation of

         20  Customs personnel in the New York and New Jersey

         21  areas.

         22                 First, I strongly believe that a

         23  Customhouse should be rebuilt in Lower Manhattan.

         24  This facility should be capable of accommodating a

         25  large number of Customs personnel in a single
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          2  building, ideally at the same location as the U.S.

          3  Customhouse at 6 World Trade Center that was

          4  destroyed in the terrorist attacks on September 11,

          5  2001. In this regard, I have enclosed for your

          6  information a letter that I wrote to Mr. Louis

          7  Tomson, President of the Lower Manhattan Development

          8  Corporation, asking for a meeting to discuss

          9  building a new Customhouse in Lower Manhattan.

         10                 Second, Customs has no intention of

         11  creating  a new Customhouse in Newark, New Jersey.

         12  If, as I hope it will be, the U.S. Customhouse for

         13  the Port of New York is replaced, I believe that it

         14  should be in Lower Manhattan. As you know, after the

         15  destruction of the U.S. Customhouse on 9/11, Customs

         16  and General Services Administration were unable to

         17  find adequate and appropriate space with the

         18  capacity of accommodating the approximately 750 U.S.

         19  Customs employees that worked at 6 World Trade. We

         20  were therefore forced to fragment our personnel into

         21  several locations in New York City, as well as in

         22  Newark. However, the bulk of our relocated employees

         23  remain in New York at One Penn Plaza, 601 West 26th

         24  Street, JFK Airport, and Queens.

         25                 Third, notwithstanding that some of
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          2  the Customs personnel relocated from New York may

          3  remain in New Jersey, I anticipate that Customs

          4  hiring and expanded investigative initiatives will

          5  ramp up staffing in New York City to equal or exceed

          6  our pre-September 11, 2001 levels in the relatively

          7  near future.

          8                 Finally, as agreed yesterday, I will

          9  inquire into the feasibility of establishing a small

         10  and somewhat symbolic office in lower Manhattan so

         11  that brokers located in the immediate area will have

         12  a more convenient location at which they can make

         13  filings or ask questions. I will get back to you by

         14  October 31 with regard to this request.

         15                 Thank you for your interest in and

         16  support of the U.S. Customs Service. If you have any

         17  further questions please contact me."

         18                 The response of Senator Schumer

         19  indicates that we've got our first shot of good news

         20  last night from Customs. Commissioner Bonner has

         21  assured me that the agency will not be moving its

         22  Customs operation out of New York, and that it's

         23  going to start shifting personnel that moved to New

         24  Jersey back to New York. But we are not out of the

         25  woods yet.
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          2                 We still need a firm commitment from

          3  Customs that all of the personnel that went to New

          4  Jersey will return and that the agency will

          5  establish a brand new Customhouse downtown.

          6                 I am going to keep the pressure on

          7  Customs until they do the right thing and come back

          8  to New York once and for all.

          9                 He gives an analogy. If an alien came

         10  to New York from outer space, and saw the federal

         11  government was spending $21.4 billion to help New

         12  York retain private businesses and companies in the

         13  wake of September 11th, but was shifting its very

         14  own agency out of the City, he'd scratch his head in

         15  amazement. Customs has got to get its act together

         16  and start working on coming back to New York with no

         17  ands, no ifs and no buts.

         18                 The Customs Service has had a strong

         19  presence in Lower Manhattan since 1789, and it would

         20  be unacceptable if we were to let the events of

         21  September 11th spell the end to that proud history,

         22  especially as we spend billions of federal dollars

         23  to lure businesses back to Lower Manhattan.

         24                 It is understandable that temporary

         25  new space was needed after the terrorist attacks,
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          2  but over a year later there is no reason that we

          3  should not move with all due speed to reestablish

          4  Customs in Lower Manhattan in total.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: Thank you very

          6  much, sir.

          7                 Let me applaud the Senator and I'm

          8  sure your own fine work in ensuring a strong

          9  national defense and a strong New York City.

         10                 Are there any questions for this

         11  speaker?

         12                 Council Member Gerson.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: It's always

         14  good to see you, Mr. Brennan.

         15                 MR. BRENNAN: Good to see you, Council

         16  member, and good to see you as a Council Member.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: It's good to

         18  see you here with all the good news you're brought.

         19                 And let me just say, the emphasis on

         20  immediate relocation on the part of the Senator, I

         21  agree with, I think it's absolutely well put. To me

         22  it's -- and I say this to everyone here, including

         23  our representatives from the service, while I'm glad

         24  to hear of the commitment to rebuild a Customs

         25  House, but it seems to me it follows from the
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          2  commitment that the Customs Service should take

          3  advantage of available temporary space, it's

          4  inconceivable to say that there is no temporary

          5  space available in Lower Manhattan, knowing the

          6  realities of Lower Manhattan, and it's just

          7  absolutely inconceivable to maintain that, and,

          8  therefore, the best way to make good on the

          9  commitment to rebuild the Customshouse in the short

         10  term is to relocate and to take advantage of the

         11  temporary office space that we know is currently

         12  available.

         13                 So, I applaud the news you bring to

         14  us, I urge that it be expanded upon. I noted the

         15  date of October 31st, which worries me a little bit,

         16  it's "trick or treat" time and I hope we'll receive

         17  a treat and not a trick on that date.

         18                 Let me just ask you, would it be

         19  helpful, as you know, we are considering our

         20  resolution, and would it help, the Senator help us

         21  in this regard, if we added to the resolution

         22  specifically, you know, the two points raised, one

         23  that we call upon, you know, the recreation of a

         24  Customhouse, the recreation of the Customhouse, to

         25  recreate what had been lost, you know, at the World
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          2  Trade Center site --

          3                 MR. BRENNAN: Sure.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: And, two, that

          5  we call upon the use, specifically point out in the

          6  resolution the use of available office space for

          7  temporary relocation pending the reconstruction or

          8  recreation of permanent Customhouse. Would it be

          9  helpful if we added those two specific points to the

         10  resolution?

         11                 MR. BRENNAN: I believe they would be

         12  helpful.

         13                 And, you know, in point of just

         14  flushing out the activity of the Senator here, he

         15  had met directly with Commissioner Bonner and asked

         16  to specifically spell out how they could satisfy

         17  their current needs in the interim by exploring the

         18  space that is in Lower Manhattan. I will say the

         19  report that we got back was less than satisfactory,

         20  and we're continuing to communicate with Customs and

         21  with GSA so that we hopefully get to a more

         22  productive place.

         23                 Ideally, we want to make this a

         24  collaborative successful effort, you know, but I

         25  think those elements in the resolution would be
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          2  helpful.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Thank you very

          4  much, Mr. Chair. At the appropriate time under your

          5  direction, I would so move to add those to the

          6  resolution.

          7                 And let me just also add my thanks to

          8  our Counsel, she's been very helpful to us, Beverly

          9  Reid, for all of your good work, as well as make

         10  mention of the work of Jonathan Greenberg from our

         11  office who has worked extensively with the trades

         12  community.

         13                 Thank you very much, Mr. Chair.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: Thank you, sir.

         15                 Any further questions?

         16                 MR. BRENNAN: And I will submit for

         17  the record as well letters that Senator Schumer has

         18  sent recently to Secretary of the Treasury, Mr.

         19  O'Neil, as well as history of some letters to

         20  Commissioner Bonner, and the Commissioner of the

         21  General Services Agency, and thank you for your time

         22  today.

         23                 We'll also be distributing a letter

         24  from Commissioner Bonner to Senator Schumer to all

         25  the members of the Committee and members of the
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          2  audience.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: Thank you very

          4  much, sir.

          5                 If you will read the next witness,

          6  please.

          7                 MS. REID: John Marturano, the

          8  President of Chapter 183 of the National Treasury

          9  Employees Union.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: Good afternoon,

         11  sir.

         12                 MR. MARTURANO: Good afternoon. Thank

         13  you. I appreciate this opportunity to speak in front

         14  of this Committee.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: Pull the mic a

         16  little closer to yourself and make sure that the

         17  light is off.

         18                 MR. MARTURANO: The light is on.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: Okay.

         20                 MR. MARTURANO: My testimony seems

         21  kind of dated concerning what we've heard in the

         22  last several minutes, but I would still like the

         23  opportunity to read it.

         24                 My name is John Marturano, and I'm

         25  President of National Treasury Employees Union,
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          2  Chapter 183.

          3                 I have the honor of representing the

          4  Customs' employees who worked at 6 World Trade

          5  Center. The nation, and particularly New York City,

          6  has suffered greatly in the terrorist attacks on the

          7  World Trade Center. Fortunately Customs lost no

          8  people, but for many of us, the trauma of seeing the

          9  World Trade Center attacked will live on forever.

         10                 In addition, we feel the loss of the

         11  Customhouse at 6 World Trade Center. To this day we

         12  are still dismayed and shocked at the unilateral

         13  decision made by Customs management to shut down

         14  their operation in Lower Manhattan.

         15                 As a result of this decision, there

         16  is no Manhattan office for public contact with U.S.

         17  Customs for the first time in over 200 years.

         18                 The federal government has allocated

         19  over $21 billion to rebuild Lower Manhattan, and

         20  encourage businesses to remain there. The President

         21  tells us that we must stand firm. He tells

         22  businesses that they must return to Lower Manhattan,

         23  he tells us that we must not let the terrorists win

         24  by fleeing Lower Manhattan. Well, what kind of

         25  message is the Custom Services sending to the City
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          2  businesses and the nation by deserting Lower

          3  Manhattan.

          4                 Customs' management has chosen to

          5  ignore their own government's show of support, and

          6  has deserted Lower Manhattan. The Customs service is

          7  an agency that prides itself on history and

          8  tradition, yet they ignored history and tradition

          9  when they left Lower Manhattan.

         10                 Customs' management could have, but

         11  decided not to, lease space in Lower Manhattan. A

         12  manager from Customs' headquarters told a gathering

         13  of employees that the destruction of the Trade

         14  Center gave headquarters the opportunity to close

         15  the Manhattan operation.

         16                 She told employees that this was

         17  strictly a business decision, and the fact that

         18  there was a local Manhattan operation for over 200

         19  years was never considered. The fact that the

         20  President was saying stand firm, was never

         21  considered.

         22                 Every morning on the way to work I

         23  take an express bus from Brooklyn. Still one of the

         24  few members of the group I grew up with that

         25  actually still lives in the City. I pass by the
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          2  World Trade Center site and I'm reminded of two

          3  facts. First, I relive the events of September the

          4  11th; secondly, I am also reminded of the fact that

          5  I and many of my fellow employees no longer work in

          6  Lower Manhattan.

          7                 For many of us, our daily commutes

          8  have increased anywhere from two to four hours a

          9  day. Many employees are suffering from the stress of

         10  this daily commute. Many employees are paying

         11  additional day care costs as a result of being

         12  reassigned to New Jersey.

         13                 Many employees want to return to

         14  Lower Manhattan. This must be done as soon as

         15  possible. I along with many employees want to thank

         16  you for giving me the opportunity to appear here

         17  today.

         18                 I urge you to pass this resolution

         19  calling upon the Treasury Department to return the

         20  Customs Service to Lower Manhattan.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: Questions for

         22  this speaker?

         23                 Sir, let me, as one New Yorker to

         24  another, let me alert you that we're going to do

         25  everything in our power to make sure the very
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          2  honorable tradition of the Customs Service is

          3  maintained, and that we all can, just at the end of

          4  the day we'll do the right thing. So, I applaud your

          5  union for doing whatever is necessary to alert

          6  everyone of any danger, real or imagined, that you

          7  have seen.

          8                 So, I very much applaud you and your

          9  activities, and we will stand firm. And I believe

         10  that our Commissioner, of course, has a background

         11  as a New Yorker. He's been in New York. This is not

         12  a foreign place to him, and I'm sure at the end of

         13  the day, we will perhaps all gather together and

         14  coast and cut the ribbon of the new headquarters,

         15  and by doing so recommit ourselves to the proud

         16  traditions that bind all of us together.

         17                 MR. MARTURANO: Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: Thank you very

         19  much, sir.

         20                 MR. MARTURANO: Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: If you'll read

         22  the next witnesses and tell them their time limits.

         23                 MS. REID: Certainly.

         24                 We will now hear from Samuel Zekser,

         25  the President of Sobel Shipping Company.
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          2                 Christopher Baretela, and your

          3  affiliation at Bartel Shipping Company.

          4                 Is Carlisle Towery here?

          5                 Okay, your testimony should be no

          6  more than two minutes, sir. And you can proceed when

          7  you have a seat.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: When you sit

          9  down, as you identify yourself for the record.

         10                 Welcome, gentlemen.

         11                 MR. BARETELA: Good afternoon. My name

         12  is Christopher Baretela. I'm the President of the

         13  Bartel Shipping Company, a Customhouse broker that

         14  has been located downtown for 43 years.

         15                 I have refused to leave New York and

         16  downtown over the past couple of decades, as I

         17  believe in the City, and as a resident, feel

         18  obligated to support its economic base.

         19                 I have resisted the urge to follow

         20  the majority of this industry to leave downtown

         21  because of its belief.

         22                 I believe it is necessary for the

         23  City of New York to exercise its influence on the

         24  federal government to bring back the Customs Service

         25  to the area. Failure to reestablish a presence will
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          2  ultimately have an effect on decisions that I make

          3  in the future location of my company and its

          4  employees.

          5                 I'd like to thank you very much for

          6  your time and for your efforts.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: Thank you, sir.

          8                 Next. Thank you, sir. You want to cut

          9  the light off and it's on. You see, we do trick

         10  things around here. Let's try it again.

         11                 MR. ZEKSER: Right. Chairman Sanders,

         12  Councilman Gerson and other members of the Committee

         13  on Economic Development of the Council of the City

         14  of New York, my name is Sam Zekser. I am the

         15  President of Sobel Shipping Company, a small

         16  business located at 170 Broadway since 1980 and 11

         17  Broadway before that. I have been working in this

         18  area below Fulton Street since 1951.

         19                 My business is customs brokerage. We

         20  provide customs clearance services to importers. I

         21  am here representing a group of small businesses

         22  involved in international trade who are located in

         23  Lower Manhattan.

         24                 It is extremely important for us to

         25  be physically close to a customs port facility, and
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          2  that is why most of us were clustered around the

          3  U.S. Customhouse, which was located at 6 World Trade

          4  Center and was totally demolished on 9/11.

          5                 The Customhouse employed

          6  approximately 750 people, and of course attracted

          7  many firms such as mine to the area.

          8                 The U.S. Customs Service has

          9  unilaterally decided to abandon Lower Manhattan

         10  after September 11th. As a result, many firms such

         11  as mine will have to move out of New York unless

         12  Customs changes its mind and returns to Lower

         13  Manhattan very soon.

         14                 The reasons that Customs give for

         15  their departure is, which we believe is a betrayal

         16  to the people of this City, is that there was no

         17  space available, it's too expensive, too

         18  inconvenient, we don't know for who, inadequate

         19  parking facilities, et cetera.

         20                 The point that I think is being

         21  overlooked here, is that small businesses such as

         22  mine are struggling to survive.

         23                 We are operating at an extreme

         24  handicap being away from a Customs working facility,

         25  and unless this is brought back, not for my
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          2  grandchildren, but for us now, at this time, we will

          3  have to move or we will fail, and our employees will

          4  be gone and so will the international trade

          5  community be gone.

          6                 This is not a question of years when

          7  a Customhouse is built, this is a question of now.

          8  It has to be done now.

          9                 The reasons they say there's no space

         10  in Lower Manhattan, and they don't want to move

         11  above the 11th floor, my office is on the 15th

         12  floor, why can't they move there?

         13                 All the reasons given, the

         14  transportation system has been restored, everything

         15  is available right here, even though they deny it.

         16  Everyone can find space in Lower Manhattan, except

         17  the U.S. Customs Service.

         18                 We do not understand why we have

         19  Customs ports in Uttica, New York, Pambina, North

         20  Dakota and some other places that are not even

         21  listed in my atlas, but we cannot have a Customs

         22  office in Manhattan.

         23                 And if they're going to put one here

         24  and it's just going to be a token, what is a token?

         25  We need an operating Customs port so we can survive
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          2  in this area, and it will bring back other

          3  businesses in this area.

          4                 The internal memo said their goal is

          5  to make 1100 Raymond Boulevard, Newark, an

          6  international trade center, the hub for commercial

          7  transactions, which is now being denied.

          8                 I don't believe it. I think that

          9  still is the objective. And if they do succeed in

         10  doing this, what happens to Lower Manhattan?

         11  International trade businesses such as ours? Can

         12  Customs deny that all the goals outlined in this

         13  memorandum to more easily and less expensively be

         14  achieved by returning Customs to Lower Manhattan.

         15  Except for the residents of New Jersey, of course.

         16  Does Customs have no shame in abandoning Lower

         17  Manhattan in its hour of need?

         18                 We ask for your help in stopping this

         19  travesty.

         20                 On behalf of the Lower Manhattan

         21  International Trade Community, I would like to thank

         22  this Committee for its support for the proposed

         23  resolution. I would especially like to take this

         24  opportunity to thank Councilman Alan Gerson, and the

         25  great Senator Charles Schumer for fighting for our
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          2  cause. Their leadership and assistance has been

          3  invaluable and is much appreciated. But unless we

          4  act soon and decisively, we will not prevail.

          5                 If we succeed, it will not only

          6  benefit the Lower Manhattan community, but all of

          7  the people of New York.

          8                 Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: Thank you very

         10  much for being out here, and I'd like to hear from

         11  -- well, I believe that we have one of my almost

         12  constituents coming out here. Mr. Towery, would you

         13  be kind enough to identify yourself and to make a

         14  short presentation?

         15                 MR. TOWERY: Yes, sir. Thank you. I'm

         16  Carlisle Towery of Greater Jamaica Development

         17  Corporation. We're a not-for-profit local

         18  development corporation, 30 or so years old, have

         19  been working in Jamaica, Queens to rebuild that

         20  downtown.

         21                 I appreciate this opportunity, Mr.

         22  Chairman and Committee members, for giving this

         23  matter priority attention. The location of

         24  government jobs and operations is region shaping in

         25  its import as we know from Jamaica where the FDA and
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          2  the Social Security Administration have located, and

          3  is an act of community building as well.

          4                 Customs is a large and important

          5  federal office, which is especially related to JFK

          6  Airport. I believe JFK may be the largest generator

          7  of Customs revenues in the U.S., and when Customs

          8  was established in Lower Manhattan, their revenues

          9  mainly came from Seaport and related operations, as

         10  you know, and some of that has changed as this

         11  region became more and more reliant on aviation.

         12                 But they have established, Customs

         13  has laboratory operations in the new FDA building in

         14  Jamaica, and I believe that they do need quality

         15  office facilities closer to JFK and have begun a

         16  search along that line.

         17                 I've not read your resolution, Mr.

         18  Chairman, but you may want to augment it by

         19  encouraging, encourage consideration be given to

         20  keeping the Customs labs in Jamaica proximate to

         21  JFK, if they are happy there and if that works.

         22  Perhaps with some of those new jobs that we

         23  understand are going to be created with

         24  investigative units and so forth, which may find JFK

         25  to be an attractive, or proximity to JFK an
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          2  attractive location. Downtown Jamaica is now

          3  connected to JFK by airtrain, which we hope will be

          4  back on track after the recent mishap, so that my

          5  statement that I will leave with you and I will not

          6  read it, points out the case toward Jamaica handling

          7  more federal jobs, it's a federal community already,

          8  airtrain means customs, if they had some of their

          9  airport-related activities there would have an

         10  eight-minute trip to several, 12-minute average

         11  trip, eight-minute trip to the first terminal. So,

         12  I'd just like to call to your attention I think the

         13  propriety and the functional attractiveness of

         14  Jamaica and the area around airtrain for a Customs

         15  facility, if they need a new facility which would be

         16  state-of-the-art, which we have some opportunities

         17  that are underway, now that I mention in here some

         18  buildings that are being built and another one

         19  underway and would very much like to talk to Customs

         20  about considering that.

         21                 Senator Schumer has done remarkable

         22  work on another front called the Group of 35, and

         23  they cite Jamaica as an appropriate place for major

         24  commercial development, and I give you a quote in my

         25  statement where they say the "Use of Government
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          2  Tenancy to Anchor Development Projects" is certainly

          3  an appropriate thing to do, because that way you

          4  reduce the risk for private developers and you

          5  enable the private sector to invest there.

          6                 Sir, let me stop you because I think

          7  there may be a question or two.

          8                 MR. TOWERY: I'm through.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: Council Member

         10  Clarke.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Thank you, Mr.

         12  Chair.

         13                 Actually, my question is directed to

         14  the two gentlemen who are Customs brokers, or

         15  involved in the shipping end of things.

         16                 I recognize and acknowledge the sense

         17  of urgency with which, you know your small

         18  businesses have testified here today. I think one of

         19  the things that would be helpful for this community

         20  -- excuse me, for this Committee, is to get a sense

         21  of timing. And I know time is of the essence. You've

         22  been able to sort of maintain yourselves sort of

         23  detached from Customs now having been dispersed; how

         24  much longer do you think businesses like yourselves

         25  can really endure the physical relocation, and what
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          2  would it take in terms of time for you to be able

          3  to, really be able to get back up to snuff once

          4  they've returned so that we get a sense of just how

          5  disruptive it's been and what it means for your

          6  industry in particular that is sort of reliant upon

          7  the proximity to the cuts of service?

          8                 MR. ZEKSER: I want to thank you very

          9  much for that question, because I think that really

         10  is the most important issue involved here. The

         11  surviving international trade community -- can you

         12  hear me? Oh, okay. The surviving international trade

         13  community, really what it depends on for each

         14  individual business would be the lease that they

         15  have. When their lease expires, at that point they

         16  have to make a decision.

         17                 My lease expires October 31st, this

         18  month, and I've asked for an extension of one year,

         19  and if in that one year, I don't see a working

         20  Customs facility here, I am going to leave, and I am

         21  sure most of the other ones left will also be

         22  departing.

         23                 It's not only that, but a relocation

         24  of a Customs facility to this area would attract new

         25  businesses, it would bring law firms and other
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          2  Customs brokers back since the rental rates are much

          3  lower now than they were prior to 9/11 and the

          4  availability of space.

          5                 So, it really depends on the

          6  expiration of the lease.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: Council Member

          8  Gerson.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: And Sam,

         10  gentlemen, thank you all for your work on this

         11  issue. It really was your initial testimonies that

         12  led to us to take up the cause, so we appreciate

         13  that.

         14                 One question, you heard the reference

         15  in the letter to a symbolic presence, you heard

         16  shifting of employees, some categories will be here,

         17  some categories will be there. We, of course, insist

         18  on more than a symbolic presence even in the short

         19  term, but my question to you is: From the standpoint

         20  of the businesses, the trade businesses dependent on

         21  the Customs Service, are there any particular

         22  categories of employees?

         23                 I know it's not just a question of

         24  numbers from the standpoint of the businesses, from

         25  the standpoint of the employees, we recognize their
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          2  desire to return and we support their desire for all

          3  categories, let me make that clear, but in the short

          4  term, are there any categories of jobs or that are

          5  more important, or I shouldn't say more important,

          6  but are needed by the businesses to be relocated

          7  right away into Lower Manhattan so you can survive?

          8  I mean, are there some categories?

          9                 MR. BARETELA: Well, they basically

         10  consider it a service sector, and what we're dealing

         11  with is the ability to be able to bring

         12  documentation to Customs on an immediate basis, for

         13  someone to review paperwork, a place in which to be

         14  able to take care of some financial matters when it

         15  comes to making payments because there are times

         16  where our payments are due and the answer to the

         17  question basically would be servicing so that we can

         18  have someone review documentation on an immediate

         19  basis, the turn-around used to be guaranteed four

         20  hours when the Customhouse was downtown. If we had a

         21  shipment that we had to clear and we had to rush the

         22  documentation into the Customhouse we could get it

         23  done and we could get a release on the shipment

         24  within four hours. Now it's anywhere between 48 and

         25  72 hours.
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          2                 So, we would need a service center

          3  that would accommodate us in that situation, and

          4  most of us are automated when it comes to the

          5  payments of revenue to the government, but there are

          6  still times when you need the ability to be able to

          7  make immediate payments, in order to avoid

          8  penalties, timeliness, to get release of shipments,

          9  so I mean the Customs Service basically calls that a

         10  service center, or import specialists, there's

         11  another area, when it comes to a question of having

         12  something reviewed, or the documentation has to be

         13  looked at. These things go directly to an inspector

         14  and then they get passed on to an import specialist

         15  who looks at the paperwork and decides as whether or

         16  not it needs an inspection or whether it can be

         17  released electronically. So, I mean, these are the

         18  things that were done downtown here.

         19                 We have no access to the Customs

         20  Service right now.

         21                 MR. ZEKSER: May I add?

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: Yes.

         23                 MR. ZEKSER: There's also the protest

         24  section.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Who? I didn't
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          2  hear you. I just didn't hear you.

          3                 MR. ZEKSER: The protest section,

          4  which is very important for the legal community

          5  operating, they have to file documents, there are

          6  certain time sensitive, you know, legal limits,

          7  there's the drawback section, drawback division,

          8  which is a separate division, drawback is for refund

          9  of duties paid on merchandise which is re-exported

         10  to be very basic about it.

         11                 They should also be present downtown

         12  in Lower Manhattan, and certainly the important

         13  specialists are required for review and

         14  classification and other issues involved with

         15  complying with import regulations and tariffs. And

         16  all of this to me would involve at least a few

         17  hundred people to service the community, and I can't

         18  see how it can be done with much less. And I don't

         19  see any reason why this can't be done within a few

         20  months from now with all the space available.

         21                 They were certainly able to get

         22  together and get into Newark very quickly. Why can't

         23  their space -- I mean, all the space is just waiting

         24  there. One Liberty Plaza has empty floors all over

         25  the place, it should be within walking distance of
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          2  the Path train. So, people in New Jersey can use the

          3  facility. All of this is essential for the survival

          4  of the International Trade Community.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Thank you very

          6  much.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: We've been

          8  joined by three other members of the Council, making

          9  sure that our Committee stays focused is our

         10  Minority Leader Council Member Oddo; in making sure

         11  that Mr. Oddo stays focused, we've been joined by

         12  Council Member Reyna and Council Member Dilan.

         13                 Council Member Dilan, I believe you

         14  had a question?

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: Thank you, Mr.

         16  Chairman, and I'll just ask that you excuse my

         17  tardiness, we were in another Committee hearing in

         18  the Bronx for the Aging Committee.

         19                 My question is to Mr. Sobel, and

         20  forgive me, your name again?

         21                 MR. BARETELA: Mr. Baretela.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: Mr. Baretela.

         23  Just two quick questions, and I may have missed it

         24  because of my tardiness: Can you tell us

         25  approximately how many businesses that deal with
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          2  international trade that are being affected by this

          3  move, to the best of your knowledge?

          4                 And then, secondly, could you also

          5  share with us any logistical problems that your

          6  businesses are having because of the move to Newark.

          7  I know you touched on a few of them, but anything

          8  else that you may want to bring to light that may be

          9  helpful to us? Thank you.

         10                 MR. ZEKSER: I did a survey on the

         11  businesses that existed prior to 1911 that were

         12  related to the U.S. Customs facility in Lower

         13  Manhattan. Now, I'm also including, there were

         14  brokers in New Jersey, and I don't think I have it

         15  with me. There were a couple of firms involved,

         16  including surety companies, law firms, customs

         17  brokers, forwarders --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: An approximate

         19  number. I don't need an exact number, an educated

         20  guess.

         21                 MR. ZEKSER: I would say a couple of

         22  hundred firms all together.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: Okay.

         24                 MR. ZEKSER: I had it with me. I don't

         25  think I do.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: Make an

          3  estimate, sir. How many people are we talking about,

          4  employees of these firms?

          5                 MR. ZEKSER: I estimated, I believe it

          6  was, I'm going by memory, about 600 employees, I

          7  would say, that I could track. I think there are

          8  more that I could not.

          9                 I'm talking about surety companies,

         10  insurance companies, law firms, customs brokers.

         11                 Many of the customs brokers have

         12  already left New York, unfortunately, for places

         13  like JFK or New Jersey for the lower rentals.

         14  Reinstating Customs or bringing them back here would

         15  bring a lot of these people back, because I think

         16  the rents are much more digestible, pardon the word.

         17                 MR. BARETELA: May I say something?

         18  With the Customhouse being downtown, many of the

         19  brokers had moved to Jersey City and to Hoboken with

         20  access of the Customhouse by reversing through the

         21  Path. So, they still use the facility downtown, even

         22  though they had moved to Jersey City.

         23                 The rents in Jersey City are now

         24  surpassing the rents in downtown Manhattan, and my

         25  feelings were that if a Customhouse was
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          2  reestablished down here, you'd find more brokers

          3  moving back down into this area, as the rents are

          4  more attractive, and certainly the downtown area is

          5  certainly a more attractive area than the JFK area

          6  would be or some of the other regions that are

          7  further out of Jersey City proper.

          8                 MR. ZEKSER: I just wanted to answer

          9  the other part of the question.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: Yes.

         11                 MR. ZEKSER: The handicap that we're

         12  operating under by being so far from Customs and

         13  what it means on a daily basis. My firm has already

         14  lost two major accounts because of the additional

         15  time it takes to get documents to the Customers

         16  facility in Newark, well in Elizabeth now, and back.

         17                 And this happens every day, it's not,

         18  you know, every other day, there's a problem, you

         19  are able to walk over the couple of -- that's why we

         20  were there, for that purpose, you were able to walk

         21  over and resolve the issue. You can't now. It's

         22  inaccessible at Corbin Street in Elizabeth. And of

         23  course, even with a move to 1100 Raymond Boulevard,

         24  it's still grossly inconvenient for the people in

         25  Lower Manhattan. Unless that facility is returned
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          2  soon, whatever is left of the international trade

          3  community will be lost. There is no doubt about

          4  that.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: Mr. Chairman,

          6  if I may, one follow-up? Just again to the best of

          7  your knowledge, how many firms do you believe

          8  already left the City of New York because of this

          9  move?

         10                 MR. ZEKSER: Since 9/11?

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: Approximately.

         12                 MR. ZEKSER: About how many have left

         13  Lower Manhattan that I know of, I know of about I

         14  think five or six Customs brokers --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: Five or six

         16  Customs brokers.

         17                 MR. ZEKSER: -- That have left.

         18                 MR. BARETELA: NVOs.

         19                 MR. ZEKSER: Some NVOs, yes. I have no

         20  count of that, that have relocated either to uptown

         21  Manhattan, and then there are law firms that have

         22  moved out of the area. Of course, there were some

         23  firms located in the World Trade Center itself, and

         24  most of them have relocated uptown or in New Jersey.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: Okay. Thank
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          2  you, Mr. Chairman, and I commend you gentlemen for

          3  sticking it out as long as possible, and we will

          4  lobby on your behalf to try to see if the federal

          5  government will follow your leadership.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: Thank you very

          7  much, sir.

          8                 MR. ZEKSER: Thank you very much.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: Mr. Towery, why

         10  don't we speak on another moment on that other

         11  issue, and I want to commend this panel for really

         12  coming and putting a lot of light on what actually

         13  is a day-to-day affair, what does all of this mean?

         14  And I heard the 600 jobs, with the 750 jobs, and

         15  only God knows, it keeps ballooning, but thank God

         16  we won't have that problem, and we will do what we

         17  can to move with all due speed to resolve this

         18  issue.

         19                 Thank you very much on this panel.

         20                 MR. ZEKSER: May I correct? That 600 I

         21  think is wrong. I think it was 900, I'm sorry.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: It just keeps

         23  getting worse.

         24                 MR. ZEKSER: Yes, people in private

         25  industry. The 750 was for Customs employees.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: Yes. Yes.

          3                 MR. ZEKSER: Okay? It was

          4  approximately 900.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: I'm going to let

          6  you go before you tell me it's 1,200 or it keeps

          7  going, so I'm going to let you go now.

          8                 I'm also going to let Council Member

          9  Reyna vote on this proposal, this resolution rather,

         10  before she has to leave.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Thank you so

         12  much.

         13                 I vote aye on this resolution,

         14  Resolution Number 311.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: Thank you very

         16  much, Council member.

         17                 Our last panel, if you'd be kind

         18  enough to call them up.

         19                 MS. REID: We next have Marilyn Cohen,

         20  President of I.L. Cohen Company; Gloria Aldamuy fro

         21  Helstrom International; and William Phelan from

         22  Charter Brokerage Corp.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Mr. Chair, as

         24  they take their seats, let me pledge to you the

         25  support of Lower Manhattan in your efforts and
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          2  conversations to assure appropriate development in

          3  the JFK and Jamaica area pursuant to discussions we

          4  had this morning of the recognition of our City as a

          5  city of multiple economic centers, and I certainly

          6  pledge to you my support for that.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: Thank you very

          8  much, and well put, sir. Without further ado. If we

          9  can hear from, I believe you were called up first,

         10  Ms. Cohen. When that little light is off in front of

         11  you it means it's on.

         12                 MS. COHEN: My name is Marilyn Cohen.

         13  I'm the President of I.L. Cohen Company, Inc.,

         14  Customhouse brokers.

         15                 In 1927, my father, a recent high

         16  school graduate, realized that in order for him to

         17  attend college he needed a full-time job. After

         18  knocking on many doors he became a messenger for a

         19  Customhouse broker, all of whom were located near

         20  the old Customhouse at the foot of Broadway. That is

         21  why I am here today.

         22                 The decision by the Custom Service to

         23  abandon New York and Lower Manhattan in particular

         24  is sad and incomprehensible to those of us in the

         25  International Trade community. For reasons economic,
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          2  historic, and, yes, patriotic, U.S. Customs needs to

          3  return to Lower Manhattan, where Customs has

          4  maintained a continuous presence since the service

          5  was created by the first session of congress in

          6  1789.

          7                 It is hypocritical of our elected

          8  officials to urge private businesses, residents and

          9  retail establishments to return, rebuild and remain

         10  in Lower Manhattan, while the federal government by

         11  fleeing to New Jersey demonstrates its lack of faith

         12  in New York's future ability to remain the center of

         13  World Trade.

         14                 When President Bush stood at Ground

         15  Zero and vowed that we would rebuild, didn't that

         16  also include Customs, the major federal agency in

         17  the World Trade Center, and the reason the World

         18  Trade Center was built.

         19                 The impact of this decision affects

         20  not only the 750 displaced employees of Customs, but

         21  also the many businesses such as ours that need to

         22  interact daily with Customs and are clustered here

         23  because of this need, the retail establishments that

         24  serve us and the real estate market already badly

         25  hurt that will suffer if we are forced however
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          2  reluctantly to relocate in order to remain in

          3  business.

          4                 During the emotional turmoil of the

          5  last year, our firm has demonstrated its strong

          6  commitment to remain in Lower Manhattan by renewing

          7  our lease, as urged by our public officials, in a

          8  building only one block from Ground Zero.

          9                 We are a small but active Customhouse

         10  brokerage firm, established in 1956, that has always

         11  been located close to the Customhouse, both when it

         12  was at the foot of Broadway and when it moved

         13  several blocks uptown to the World Trade Center.

         14                 Our business necessitates

         15  consultations, reviews, submissions of samples and

         16  documents and personal meetings with the different

         17  offices of U.S. Customs.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: Ma'am, I'm going

         19  to ask you to summarize. I apologize. I want to make

         20  sure that a vote is taken before I lose my Committee

         21  members.

         22                 MS. COHEN: Oh, I just have a little

         23  bit more. All right?

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: If you could do

         25  it in 20 seconds, by all means.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            75

          1  COMMITTEE ON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

          2                 MS. COHEN: We need to be near a

          3  Customhouse for many reasons, among them being the

          4  timely filing of documents and duties to obtain

          5  release of merchandise and avoid penalties and

          6  demurrage charges. The ability to meet with Customs

          7  officials to discuss classification of merchandise

          8  and to bring importers to present new items for

          9  classifications, presenting to the appropriate

         10  Customs offices merchandise which has been detained

         11  for various reasons, to correct marking questions

         12  and we need it now. Some time in the indeterminate

         13  future will destroy the future of Lower Manhattan

         14  Customs community permanently.

         15                 I would also like to point out that

         16  there are thousands of people working in fields such

         17  as the garment industry, the accessories industry,

         18  the shoe industry, who need to consult with Customs

         19  on an almost daily basis by bringing samples in to

         20  get correct classifications, which can affect the

         21  bottom line of all of these companies.

         22                 If they cannot come down to Customs,

         23  they will have to move to where they can go to

         24  Customs, there's no reason to keep their offices,

         25  certainly their sales and development offices in New
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          2  York.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: Well put, Ms.

          4  Cohen.

          5                 I must stop you here because I

          6  believe that your fellow speakers will underline

          7  your point.

          8                 Ma'am, would you be kind enough?

          9                 MS. ALDAMUY: All right.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: If you can

         11  identify yourself, and pull that microphone towards

         12  you, identify yourself for the record.

         13                 MS. ALDAMUY: Yes. I'm Gloria Aldamuy.

         14  I'm the President of a small Customhouse brokerage,

         15  I'm also a resident of Battery Park City.

         16                 I would like to thank Senator Schumer

         17  and Mr. Gerson's office for the help they have given

         18  us so far. Without them I don't think we would have

         19  come this far.

         20                 As president of a small business

         21  located a half a block from Ground Zero, I ask for

         22  your help in bringing back Customs to Lower

         23  Manhattan.

         24                 We employ five people, they live in

         25  Queens, the Bronx and Manhattan, and I will have to
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          2  ask them to suffer greatly by moving to New Jersey.

          3                 My lease expires in June 2003. I

          4  don't know what to do. You're willing to give me

          5  some money to retain me here, but it's not going to

          6  do me any good if I have to leave. I'll have to

          7  leave both my home in Battery Park City and my

          8  office to relocate to New Jersey.

          9                 Please note that our clients are also

         10  suffering because it's taking us two additional days

         11  to process the documents that we have to give to

         12  Customs to clear.

         13                 That' it in a nutshell. Please help

         14  us and help the community also.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: Well put.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Thank you very

         17  much.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: Our next

         19  speaker.

         20                 MS. REID: Mr. Phelan.

         21                 MR. PHELAN: Yes, thank you very much.

         22  My name is William Phelan, and I'm here with my

         23  partner, Edmund Cienava. We are a charter brokerage

         24  corporation, and we're a little different, we moved

         25  to downtown Manhattan in 2000 because we needed to

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            78

          1  COMMITTEE ON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

          2  be near the Customhouse, that was the reason we were

          3  here. Both Edmund and I are formerly practicing

          4  attorneys in the Customs area and worked downtown

          5  here since 1976. But we have offices in Stanford,

          6  Connecticut and Miami and we still have a need to be

          7  in New York and we opened an office on William

          8  Street. So now the question is do we stay? Out lease

          9  is up in April of 2003. And as others have asked,

         10  please help us. We don't know what to do.

         11                 We know we can stay only if Customs

         12  reopens in New York. Will they do so? We were very

         13  encouraged by the news we heard today. But, Mr.

         14  Gerson, you asked for information about exactly what

         15  functions the Customs Service must perform in New

         16  York in order to keep the brokers and forwarders who

         17  are here. Right now, since September 11th, it is not

         18  possible to clear a cargo in the port of New York --

         19  in Manhattan, I'm sorry. You can't file an entry, an

         20  entry being the documentation you need to clear

         21  goods. You've got to go to Newark or JFK to do that.

         22  It's a logistical nightmare for those of us who are

         23  here. We need immediately, by October 31, if Mr.

         24  Schumer's letter is true, we need an office where we

         25  can file our documents and clear our cargoes. If we
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          2  had that, with an assurance that Customs intends to

          3  build the World Trade Center -- I'm sorry, build the

          4  Customhouse again, that would go a long way towards

          5  our decision to renew our lease.

          6                 If we don't have that, then we might

          7  as well move out to Nassau County and work through

          8  JFK or over to Jersey, it's really as simple as

          9  that.

         10                 Just going forward and answering some

         11  of the other questions, the businesses affected.

         12  Clearly the Customs brokers or freight forwarders,

         13  the insurance companies are affected, but as a

         14  former practicing attorney, what about all the law

         15  firms? The Customs Bar Association, I don't mean to

         16  speak for them but I'm a member of it, as is Edmund,

         17  is located in New York because of the Court of

         18  International Trade is in New York. The Court is in

         19  New York because New York has always been the center

         20  of Customs activity. If we move the Customhouse and

         21  the customs activity permanently, what's to keep the

         22  court from going?

         23                 If the court goes, the trade bar will

         24  go because there's a big pull in Washington to get

         25  it down there.
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          2                 I urge you to please keep the Customs

          3  Service in New York, in all its functions. We need

          4  entry processing and clearance. And then as my

          5  predecessors in testimony mentioned, we need

          6  protest, we need drawback, we need the import

          7  specialists, all of the people that constitute the

          8  full workings of the Customs Service. But, please,

          9  in the interim, let us be able to process and clear

         10  cargoes through a Customs office here in Manhattan.

         11                 Right now we have to go to Newark or

         12  JFK to do that, and it's a killer.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: So your eloquent

         14  and heartfelt pleas I'm sure have gone on across

         15  every member of this Committee. While there may be

         16  some need for laboratory work out in JFK, certainly

         17  there is no -- I'll do it different, I'll qualify.

         18  I, too, although I am the Council member that covers

         19  JFK, I, too, call for the rest of the facilities to

         20  be based in Manhattan at the center of where

         21  business is taking place, in this historic center.

         22                 So, I'm going to -- I'm sure that the

         23  Committee as a whole will join you in those pleas.

         24                 Are there any questions for these

         25  worthy people?
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          2                 If there are none, then let me thank

          3  you very much for coming out here today, taking your

          4  time and your energy. We are going to do everything

          5  within our power, and perhaps a little more, to

          6  ensure that you have a rapid understanding. In fact,

          7  we're going to do it shortly, because we're going to

          8  put this resolution to a vote.

          9                 We're going to back this one up with

         10  some teeth.

         11                 MR. PHELAN: Great.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: Thank you very

         13  much for coming out here.

         14                 MR. PHELAN: Thank you.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: And, again,

         16  thank you. Your points all are very well taken, and

         17  important to our work. Thank you.

         18                 MR. PHELAN: Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: There are some

         20  letters that need to be read into the record, if

         21  that can take place. I believe if we can see how

         22  fast you speed read, and if you can do that now,

         23  sir.

         24                 COUNCIL STAFF: The first letter is

         25  from Transworld from Berta Cresette, who is the Vice
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          2  President there. It says:

          3                 "To whom it may concern:

          4                 9/11 caused enormous destruction and

          5  upheaval but we still have to get our lives and

          6  businesses to survive. Survival for the community

          7  involved in international trade and Customs

          8  clearance has become increasingly difficult and

          9  cumbersome, due to the fact that not enough effort

         10  is being made by the government to revert to normal

         11  ways, such as returning the offices of the U.S.

         12  Customs Service to New York City.

         13                 Computers bridge a lot of distance,

         14  but our trade still involves a lot of paper to be

         15  ferried back and forth, and the additional time and

         16  money now spent to accomplish this, often makes the

         17  difference between profit and loss on a transaction

         18  to Customs brokers, as well as their clients.

         19                 The revival of downtown New York and

         20  the City at large depends greatly on the

         21  reestablishment of government facilities in the

         22  area."

         23                 The second letter is from the World

         24  Trade Computer Exchange, Incorporated, and its Vice

         25  President Burton Welte.
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          2                 "My name is Burton Welte. I am a

          3  vice-president of World Trade Computer Exchange,

          4  Inc. My firm has provided computer software services

          5  to the import and export community for over 30

          6  years. For most of that time we have been located in

          7  either the World Trade Center or the immediate area.

          8  To be faced with the prospect of not having a Custom

          9  House in the lower Manhattan area is most

         10  discouraging.

         11                 Along with members of the import and

         12  export community who rely on the services provided

         13  at the Custom House we would no longer have a reason

         14  to maintain offices here. We strongly urge you to

         15  pass the resolution calling for Customs to return to

         16  lower Manhattan.

         17                 Very truly yours, Burton Welte."

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: Thank you, sir.

         19  Were there any other letters?

         20                 COUNCIL STAFF: No.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: Then, my

         22  friends, we are preparing ourselves to vote on this

         23  resolution as is.

         24                 And I believe that we need to call

         25  the roll.
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          2                 COUNCIL CLERK: Sanders.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: I usually like

          4  to vote last, but it gives me great honor to vote

          5  first, yes.

          6                 COUNCIL CLERK: Clarke.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Yes.

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK: Dilan.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: Yes.

         10                 COUNCIL CLERK: Gerson.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Yes.

         12                 COUNCIL CLERK: Gioia.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: Yes.

         14                 COUNCIL CLERK: Recchia.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: Yes.

         16                 COUNCIL CLERK: Oddo.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Yes, and please

         18  add my name as a sponsor of the resolution.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK: The vote stands at

         20  eight in the affirmative, zero in the negative and

         21  no abstentions. The item is adopted.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: Thank you very

         23  much. I congratulate everyone who has taken place

         24  and done their civic duty.

         25                 I also want to extend a special
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          2  congratulations to Council Member Gerson who really

          3  worked this one through.

          4                 This meeting is now adjourned.

          5                 (Hearing concluded at 2:58 p.m.)
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          1

          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 17th day of October 2002.
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